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OPINION AND ORDER

BY THE COMMISSION:

Before the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (Commission) for consideration and disposition is a Settlement Agreement filed on July 7, 2010, by the Commission’s Law Bureau Prosecutory Staff (Prosecutory Staff) and UGI Utilities, Inc. (UGI).  
Background and History of the Proceeding
On September 6, 2009, the Farmington Way residential subdivision, located in Lititz, Lancaster County, Pennsylvania, experienced a gas service outage when the propane tanks serving the subdivision contained insufficient propane supplies to pressurize the system.  UGI Utilities, Inc. (UGI) owned and operated this propane gas distribution system.  The tanks were filled by UGI’s affiliate, AmeriGas Partners, L.P. (AmeriGas).  
UGI owned and operated a propane gas distribution system within its “Lancaster Division” that served the Farmington Way residential subdivision.  The system was installed in 2002 as a temporary measure until such time as the subdivision would be connected to and served by UGI’s natural gas distribution system serving the surrounding area.  The Farmington Way distribution system was supplied by three 
1,000-gallon propane tanks enclosed in a fenced-in area that was kept locked.  On the fence was a placard containing a telephone number to call in case of an emergency.
On September 11, 2009, a resident of the Farmington Way subdivision sent a letter to the individual Commissioners notifying them of the gas service outage.  The letter complaint further stated that the tanks were believed to be too close to nearby residences which this customer deemed to be a “very dangerous condition that needs immediate attention.”  The letter complaint was forwarded to the Commission’s Gas Safety Division.

An Inspector from the Gas Safety Division met on site with a UGI representative to inspect the propane gas tanks.  UGI informed the Inspector that the procedure in the Company’s Lancaster Division during non-Winter months did not include checking propane levels at given intervals.  The Inspector found a plastic fence surrounding the tanks, and the emergency telephone number provided on the fence placard was not a working number.
The inspection lead to the formation of an investigative team consisting of the Commission’s Law Bureau and the Gas Safety Division (Prosecutory Staff), on or about November 1, 2009.  An informal investigation was initiated to determine whether UGI violated its tariff or the Public Utility Code (Code).  The Prosecutory Staff concluded that UGI had violated provisions of the Code and the Code of Federal Regulations.  Prosecutory Staff and UGI engaged in negotiations and a Settlement Agreement was executed.  It was filed with the Commission on July 7, 2010.

If these matters had been litigated, Prosecutory Staff would have contended that UGI violated certain provisions of the Code and the Code of Federal Regulations in that:    
A.
The Company failed to monitor the propane gas supplies serving its customers in the Farmington Way residential subdivision.  If proven, this would have violated 66 Pa. C.S. § 1501.
B.
The Company failed to furnish and maintain adequate, efficient, safe and reasonable service in the provision of gas service to its customers in the Farmington Way residential subdivision.  If proven, this would have violated 66 Pa. C.S. § 1501.

C.
The Company failed to provide correct information on its emergency placard.  UGI’s emergency placard listed an incorrect emergency telephone number.  If proven, this would have violated 49 CFR 192.707 and § 1501.

The Prosecutory Staff’s allegations were formulated without the benefit of a hearing and certain averments are or may be disputed by UGI.  Had this matter been fully litigated, UGI would have contended that its actions did not violate the Code or federal law nor, if a violation was determined, that it should be fined or penalized for any offense.  Settlement Agreement ¶ 20.
Terms of the Settlement Agreement
The Settlement Agreement notes that Section 3301 of the Public Utility Code (Code), 66 Pa. C.S. § 3301, authorizes the Commission to impose civil penalties on a public utility for violations of the Code, the Commission’s Regulations, and/or any Commission Order.  The Settlement Agreement further notes that each day’s continuance of a violation is a separate offense, for which the Commission may impose a separate civil penalty.  66 Pa. C.S. § 3301(b); Settlement Agreement ¶ 4.   

The Settlement Agreement notes that throughout the entire investigatory process, UGI complied with Prosecutory Staff requests for information and documentation and maintained ongoing communications.  UGI fully cooperated with the investigation.  Settlement Agreement ¶¶ 21-22.



The Parties have agreed to the stipulated terms set forth as follows:


A.
UGI will within thirty (30) days of the date of the Order approving 



this Settlement Agreement revise its internal operating procedure for 



its Lancaster Division with regard to the monitoring of propane 



levels in propane tanks serving its gas beyond the mains customers 



so as to be consistent to the procedure followed in its Harrisburg



Division in an effort to avoid similar outages in the future.

 

B.
UGI will within thirty (30) days of the date of the Order approving




this Settlement Agreement verify that the emergency telephone 



number on the fence placard has been corrected to display a working 


telephone number for reaching the Company in the event of an 



emergency.  UGI will also notify the Commission in the event that 



the fence and propane tanks are removed as a result of the recent 



conversion of the distribution system.


C.
UGI has converted the supply of the Farmington Way subdivision 



from propane to natural gas as of June 30, 2010.  This conversion 



included construction of a natural gas distribution main extension 



and appurtenant facilities by UGI, or a qualified contractor, and 



conversion of appliances in customer homes by a qualified HVAC



company selected and under the supervision of UGI.
  The 




customers were held harmless from the cost of conversion.  UGI 



advised its residential customers of the Farmington Way subdivision



of the intended conversion timeframe and worked with each 




customer to schedule individual home conversions.



D.
UGI will pay a civil penalty pursuant to 66 Pa. C.S.A. § 3301(c) in 



the amount of seventeen thousand five hundred dollars ($17,500.00) 



to resolve the alleged violations uncovered by this informal 




investigation.  Said payment shall be made by certified check to the 



Commonwealth of Pennsylvania and presented to the Commission 



within thirty (30) days of the date of the Order approving this 




Settlement Agreement.  UGI agrees not to seek recovery of any 



portion of this payment in future ratemaking proceedings.


E.
The Prosecutory Staff agrees not to institute any formal complaint 



relating to UGI’s gas service outage that is the subject of this 




Settlement Agreement.



F.
The terms and conditions in this Settlement Agreement cannot be 



used in any future proceeding relating to this or any other matter as 



proof of unlawful behavior, or as an admission of unlawful behavior 



by UGI.

Settlement at ¶ 25.

In consideration of UGI’s agreement to pay a $17,500.00 civil penalty, as specified herein, the Prosecutory Staff agrees to forebear the institution of any formal complaint that relates to UGI’s conduct as described in the Settlement Agreement.  Nothing contained in this Settlement Agreement shall adversely affect the Commission’s authority to receive and resolve any informal or formal complaints filed by any affected party with respect to the incident, except that no further civil penalties may be imposed by the Commission for any actions identified herein.  Settlement Agreement ¶ 26.

The Settlement Agreement is conditioned upon the Commission’s approval of the Settlement Agreement without modification.  Id. at ¶ 39.  The Parties reserve the right to withdraw from the Settlement Agreement if it is modified.  Id. at ¶ 40.
Discussion
No presiding officer has been assigned in this proceeding.  As a result, the Commission will review the proposed Settlement Agreement pursuant to 52 Pa. Code § 5.232(g).
The Commission’s policy is to promote settlements, 52 Pa. Code § 5.231, but the Commission must review proposed settlements to determine whether the terms are in the public interest.  Pa. PUC v. Philadelphia Gas Works, Docket No. M-00031768 (Order entered January 7, 2004).  Under these circumstances, it is appropriate to seek public comment before taking final action on the Settlement Agreement.
Conclusion

Before issuing a decision on the merits of the proposed Settlement Agreement, consistent with Section 3.113(b)(3) of our Regulations, 52 Pa. Code § 3.113(b)(3), we are providing an opportunity for interested parties to file comments; THEREFORE,



IT IS ORDERED:



1.
That this Opinion and Order, together with the attached Settlement Agreement, shall hereby be entered for comments.


2.
That a copy of this Opinion and Order together with the attached Settlement Agreement shall be served on the Office of Consumer Advocate, the Office of Small Business Advocate and the Office of Trial Staff.

3.
That comments to the Settlement Agreement and this Opinion and Order will be considered timely if filed within twenty (20) days of the date of entry of this Opinion and Order.

4.
That, subsequent to the Commission’s review of the comments filed in this proceeding, a final Opinion and Order will be issued.
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BY THE COMMISSION,







Rosemary Chiavetta







Secretary

(SEAL)

ORDER ADOPTED: August 18, 2010
ORDER ENTERED:  August 23, 2010

Attachment I

Settlement Agreement
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� 	It should be noted that UGI had already included the conversion of the Farmington Way gas distribution system to natural gas supply as part of its 2010 construction budget.  This budget was finalized before the Prosecutory Staff’s involvement in this matter.
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